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1. Name of Property
historic name William Scott Farmstead
other names/site numbder Roberts House; Bnnis Pend House: DHR file 46-86

2. Loeation

street & number Route 2 N/A [_]not tor publication

clty, town Windsor IX_] vielnity

state Virginia code VA county Isle of Wight code 003 zlp code 23487

3. Claasitication
Ownership of Property Category ot Property Number of Rasources within Property
[ d private {XJ butlding(a) Contributing Noncontributing
(] public-ocal L] distriet g O__ bulidings
D public-State [(Jaite 0 O __ sites
(] public-Federal [_] structure ] O ___ structures
[:’ object 0 O objects
6 0 __ Total
Name of related multiple property ilsting: Number of contributing resources previously
N/A listed (n the National Register __0

4. State/Federal Agency Certification

| As the designated authorlty under the Naticnal Historlc Preservation Act of 1568, as amendsd, | hareby certity that this
XD nominatlon ) request for determination of sligibillty meets the documentation standards for registering properties In the
Natlonal Fegister of Historic Places and meeta the procedural and professional requirements set forth In 38 CFR Part €0.

in my rTnlon.[the prc:p:myljm ots [_]does not meet the Natlonal Register criteria. [ see continuation shest.
[}

a

Slgnalu'ro of ¢ nl@)nq officlal ' .
Director, Department of Historic Resources

State or Federa) agency and bureau

k.

Date

In my opinlon, the property Dmeete Ddoes not meet the National Registar criteria. [_] see continuation aheat.

Slgnature of commenting or other officlal Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification
[, heraby, certify that this property is:
Domered in the Nationa! Register.
DSea continyation sheet.
Ddatermined eligible for the National
Register. [_] Ses continuation sheat,
Ddatermined nat eligible for the
Natlonal Register.

[_Iremaved trom the Natlonal Ragister.
I__-Iother’ (explain:)

Signatura of the Keeper Date of Action



6. Function or Use

Historic Functions (enter categories from instructions) Current Functions (enter categories from instructions)
Domestic: Single dwelling Domestic: Single dwelling
Domestic: Secondary structure Domestic: Secondary structure
agriculture: Agricultural outbuilding Agriculture: Agricultural outbuilding

Agricnlture: storage

Agricultures orocessing
7. Description
Architectural Classification Materiais (enter categories from instructions)
(enter categories from instructions) ' )
foundation Brick
_COLONTAL: Georgian walls ____ Drick
FARLY REPUBLIC: Federal Wood :
NO STYLE roof Stamped Sheet Metal Shingles
other Wood porch, standing-seam sheet

metal roof

Describe present and historic physical appearance.

SUMMARY DESCRTPTION

The William Scott Farmstead is a three-and-one-quarter-acre site located
on the west side of County Route 603 in rural Isle' of Wight County,
Virginia, two miles from the town of Windsor. Built arqund 1775, the
main house is a two-story, five-bay, gable-roofed brick structure
embellished with early Federal, Greek Revival, and Colonial Revival
details. These details, juxtaposed with varying brick colors and sizes
on the exterior, suggest that the house was originally a one-and-one-
half-story structure that was raised to two stories, probably in the
early nineteenth century. The house was further extended by a mid-
nineteenth frame addition to the rear. The Scott House has always been
occupied as a dwelling and retains much of its early Federal interior

woodwork.

The contributing outbuildings of the farmstead are a nineteenth-century
servants’ quarter, a kitchen, a smokehouse, a barn and a crib. All put
the 1last of these are built with traditional wood frames covered with
weatherboarding. The crib is built of saddle-notched logs.

DETATLFD DESCRIPTION

The William Scott Farmstead is bounded on the east by a larg? level vyard
stretching from the facade of the house two hundred and elghty'feet to
County Route 603. The farmstead is bounded on the other three sides by
small level yards. Behind the house to the west, the ground gently
slopes away to a small stream, with an open field located dlgecﬁly to the
south. Sited directly north of the house are the farm buildings which
are arranged in a long, open rectangle on a mostly level site.

The principal dwelling of the William Scott Farmstead faces east and
measures forty-six feet by twenty feet. It 1is a five-bay, two-story,
brick house set over a raised basement, with a gable roof and two
interior end chimneys. Both floors have single-pile, central-passage
plans.

The house was probably built between 1770 and }785.as a one—and—qne-half-
story brick house, and raised to two full stories in the early nineteenth

[X] See continuation sheet



8. Statement of Signiticance
Certifying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:

[ Jnationaity [ ]statewide locaity

Applicable National Register Criteria DA DB C [:]D

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) [ JA [ 18 [Jc [Jo [Je [JF [Ja

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance Significant Dates
ARCHITECTURE : ’ ca. 1780-ca.1889 ca. 1780
. ca.1839
“ ca.1889

Cultural Affiliation

N/A
Significant Person Architect/Builder
N/A unknown -

State significance of proparty, and justify criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above,

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The William Scott Farmstead is significant because it is dominated by one
of the few eighteenth-century houses still standing in Southside
Virginia. Among surviving structures, the central-passage plan and
Flemish bond brick fabric of this house are not unique, but its original
cellar kitchen is truly exceptional--a departure from the detached
kitchen arrangement known to have prevailed on the landscape of the
eighteenth-century Tidewater Virginia. The main house of the Scott
Farmstead has sustained several clearly identifiable periods of
construction that have left the integrity of the original structure
largely intact. These alterations represent several generations of
changing domestic priorities among prosperous households 1n Virginia

between 1780 and 1889.

The William Scott Farmstead is also significant because it ipcludes a
remarkably intact assemblage of nineteenth-century agricultural
buildings. Among the five surviving structures are stable and unaltered
examples of many of the sorts of outbuildings know to have supporped any
thriving nineteenth-century domestic and agricultural operation. As
individual structures, they would be important documents of a rural
landscape that has otherwise largely vanished. As an assemblage, they
represent one of the most informative and intact nineteenth-century

farmsteads in Tidewater Virginia.

HISTORTCAT, BACKGROUND

The main dwelling of the William Scott Farmstead in rural Isle of Wight
County, Virginia, apparently dates from the late eighteenth century, and
the original owner was named William Scott. He is probably the son of
the William Scott who acguired numerous tracts of land in Isle of Wight
County between 1740 and 1760. ' e .

[X]See continuation shest



9. Major Bibilographical References

BIBLIOGRAPHY
Isle of Wight County Deed Books,

1740 to 1987.

Isle of Wight County Land Tax Records, 1782 to 1885.
Isle of Wight County Personal Property Tax Records, 1782 to 1850.

Isle of Wight County Will Book 10.
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King, Helen Haverty, Historic Isle of Wight. 1983: Privately printed.

Previous documentation on flle (NPS):

[T preliminary determination of Individusi iisting (38 CFR 87)
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(C previcusly listed in the National Register
previously determined eligible by the National Register
designated a Natlonal Historic Landmark
[ racorded by Historic American Bulldings
Survey #

recorded by Historic American Englneering
Record #

[C]8ee continuation sheet

Primary iccation of additional duts:
State historic preservation office
Other State agency
Federal agency
Local governmeant
University
Other

Specify repository: _
mging% Dept. of Historic Resources

221 Governor Street, Richmond, VA 23219

10._Geographical Data
Acreage of property 3,25 acres

UTM Relerances

AlL8] 3l4716,40] 41017,5(3,701 - SO I A T TR O A A

Zone  Easting Norihing Zone Easting Northing
el Ll b et b 3 I I T T I T A A

[C] see continuation shest

Verbal Boundary Description

The boundary of the William Scott Farmstead is shown as the sclid lire around Lot #2"0n
the accompanying map entitled "Survey of the Property of the J. Goode Roberts Estate
and dated March 14, 1984.

[C] See continuation sheet

Boundary Justification

The William Scott Farmstead nomination consists of three-and-one-quarter acres with

legally recorded boundaries that represent the portion of the estate conveyed to Thomas_

J. Wright, IIT and Peggy P. Wright by deed dated March 26, 1987. This lot is the domestic

core of the original William Scott estate and consists of the eighteenth-century house

and contributing nineteenth—century farm buildings. Other portions of the original estate
- [X] See continuation sheet
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namettitle __ Edward Tolson
organization _Department of Historic Preservation date _March 1990

street & number Mary Washington College telephone _703-899-4037
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century. The original section was laid in Flemish bond brick with
regular glazed headers, gauged brick jack arches, rubbed brick corners
and window surrounds, and a beveled water table. The second story
section was also laid in Flemish bond pattern but without the decorative
features on the first story, except for the gauged brick jack arches.

The bricks are not uniform in size, ranging in thickness from two to two-
and-one-half inches, and in length from eight to nine inches. All are
approximately four inches deep. There are also several variations in
brick color throughout the house, suggesting that work was done in
various stages or different periods of brick manufacture.

The windows and doors have thick wooden sills and frames, as do the four
fixed-sash wooden windows of the raised basement. The first story of the
facade is pierced by symmetrically arranged six-over-six double-hung sash
windows. The first story of the north and south elevations, and the
second story of the east and west elevations have smaller four-over-four
double-hung sash windows. The diminished dimensions of the second story
windows increase the appearance of verticality in the building. There
are no windows on the second story of the north and south elevations.

The gable roof of the building 1is covered with stamped sheet-metal
shingles. The cornice, which returns at the gable ends, is decorated
with wooden modillions attached to a plain soffit. The fascia is an
unadorned plank topped with a crown molding. The interior-end chimney
caps are molded half-round bricks. The chimneys have a stepped profile
that is parallel to and approximately eight inches above the <two planes
of the present roof 1line. This indicates that the roof structure has
been replaced and the present roof pitch is lower than the second-period
roof pitch.

The present entrance porch on the facade appears to have been built in
the mid-nineteenth century. It is set on a solid brick foundation that
supports a wooden plank floor, a pair of built-in wooden benches, and two
wooden fluted columns in the Doric order. The columns are solid sixteen-
inch-round wooden posts that have been carved to appear fluted. The one-
story porch has a standing-seam sheet-metal-covered hipped roof above a
full entablature. The main entrance has a pair of doors, with glass
replacing the original wooden panels, surmounted by a six-pane glazed
transom. There are no storm doors here, but all of the windows of the
house have aluminum~framed storm windows.

The raised basement, entered through a bulkhead on the west elevation,
has only six feet of headroom and a concrete floor laid over brick. on
the south wall of the cellar is a large chimney with a segmental-arched
firebox that has been bricked in, but shows evidence of hav1ng been the
household’s early or original kitchen fireplace. There is also a
mortise-and-tenoned frame hung from the first-floor joists by wooden
dowels, near the south chimney. This frame appears to have supported a
fan to help cool the area. In the north end of the cellar is a frame

3
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enclosure, approximately eight feet square, with a large, plain batten
door secured by a wooden padlock.

The first floor of the Scott House has a ten-~foot ceiling height, and
original, six-panel, raised-panel doors opening into each room. All of
the walls and ceilings of the first floor have been replastered by the
present owner. The passage has or1g1nal pine floorlng running east-west,
with baseboards, beaded door trim, and chairrails in the Federal style,
and modern wood crown molding with a profile but no carving.

The south room is the most ornate, with original pine flooring running
north-south, baseboards, and door and window trim in the Federal style,
thirty-four-inch-tall raised dade panels above the baseboards, and a
recent wood crown molding that is embossed but not carved. The original
flreplace has been replaced by a modern firebox that is much smaller than
the original. The present owner has replaced the original mantel with an
elaborate mantel taken from another house. An original closet on the
east side of this chimney also has been removed by the present owner.

The north room has original pine flooring running north-south,
baseboards, door and window trim, and chairrails in the Federal style.
The walls below the chairrail are painted and above it they are covered
with wallpaper, and topped with a modern wood crown molding with a
profile but no carving. The chimney has a painted Federal-style mantel.
An unusual feature of this room is the thirty-eight-and-one-half-inch-
wide, six-panel, wooden door located in the northwest corner.

The second-flcoor plan is identical to the plan of the first floor. The
stairs leading to the second floor are located on the north wall of the
passage and its spandrel is ornamented with raised panels. The closed
stringer stairs have painted risers, varnished pine treads, and turned
newel posts and balusters. The floors of the second story are pine, and
the rooms have painted baseboards, walls, and ceilings. These floors do
not have chairrail or crown molding. The south room of the second floor
has a small fireplace with a Federal mantel. The north room has no
fireplace but there is a flue attachment for a stove.

In the southwest corner of the south room is a door that opens to reveal
an early winder staircase leading to the attic. This feature allows easy
access to the attic and the roof structural system. The roof is framed
with hewn pine rafters that are mortised, tenoned, pegged, and set on
twenty-four inch centers. The rafters have half-lapped collar beams, and
Roman numerals carved into the sides of each rafter. The ends of the
rafters are set on a false plate which rests on the ends of the ceiling
]OlStS that protrude past the plane of the wall and carry the exterior
cornice. The roofing boards are cut with a bevel on each edge and laid
so that they fit snugly against each other. The sheathing boards are
also beveled where they butt each other end to end. Two four-paned

4
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fixed-sash wooden windows flank the chimneys on both gable ends. Some of
the attic floor boards are twenty-five feet 1in length and six inches
wide.

A mid-to-late-nineteenth-century frame addition is attached to the rear
elevation of the Scott House. This shed-roofed addition is one story in
height, except for a two-story, gable-roofed, central pavilion. There is
also a wooden, one-story, hip-roofed porch. The entire extension is
covered with a standing-seam sheet-metal roof, except for the two-story
pavilion, which has a stamped, sheet-metal shingle roof covering. Both
portions of this addition are clad in painted weatherboards. Both wings
of this extension have chimneys laid in irregular common~bond brickwork.
These chimneys have a second upper shoulder, apparently created for
decoration only, as there is no evidence of alteration or of a loft-level
firebox. In the southern half of the addition there is one six-over-six
and one nine-over-nine double~hung sash window on the west wall, and two
four-over-four double-hung sash windows on the south wall flanking the

chimney. The north portion of the addition has two six-over-six double-
hung sash windows on the west wall, and a chimney 1laid in irregular
common-pbond brickwork. The interior floor plan of this addition

continues the central-passage plan of the original structure, and has a
bathroom that has been added in the southwest corner of the passage. The
south room of the extension is a family room with a small fireplace and a
varnished pine mantel. The north room of the extension has been
remodelled as a modern kitchen. North of the kitchen 1is a late
nineteenth-century mudroom with nine-over-nine double-hung sash windows
on each of the three exterior walls. There is also a three-panel, four-
light door leading to an L-shaped, hip-roofed wooden porch.

Slightly south and west of the house is a wood framed smokehouse. It
measures twelve feet by ten feet, with beaded weatherboarding on the
north wall and plain weatherboarding on the other three walls. It is set
on concrete block piers, which replace the original brick footings. It
has only one opening, a beaded board-and-batten door set in the west
corner of the north facade. It has a gable roof covered with round-butt
wooden shingles. The cornice has only a plain fascia board with no
soffit. The building is in fair condition.

Immediately north and slightly west of the house is a kitchen dependency
measuring twenty feet by sixteen feet. It is a one-story, two-bay,
gable-roofed, wooden building, probably built in the early nineteenth
century. It is set on a solid brick foundation and has a wood frame clad
in weatherboarding. The north and south elevations each have a window
with four-over-four double-hung sash and a beaded batten door. The east
elevation has a four-pane fixed-sash window set in the gable. The west
elevation has a massive exterior end chimney laid in five-course common-
bond brickwork. The firebox on the inside is six feet eight inches wide,
five feet high, and two inches deep. The first floor ceiling and walls
are blackened from use as a kitchen. There is an open-stringer staircase

t
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on the east wall that leads to a loft area. The roof structural systen
is an exact duplicate of that of the main house, with rafters set on a
false plate that rests on ceiling joists protruding from the wall to
carry the fascia board. The rafters are mortised, tenoned, and pegged,
with collar beams half-lapped and nailed to them. The spaced sheathing
boards carry a sheet-metal roof, which is a twentieth-century replacement
of an earlier covering. This building is in good condition.

Immediately north and slightly east of the main house is a slave or
servants’ quarter, measuring thirty-two feet by eighteen feet, probably
built in the mid-to-late nineteenth century. It is a one-story, three-
bay, gable-roofed wooden frame building set on brick piers, and 1is clad
in unbeaded weatherboarding. It has exterior-end chimneys on the north
and south elevations laid in five-course common-bond brickwork. The east
and west elevations have six-over-nine double-hung sash windows
symmetrically arranged on either side of central doorways. Each entrance
is fitted with an unbeaded batten door. The interior has a central-
passage plan, but proportions suggest that it was probably a two-room
plan in its original form. There is a steep open-stringer staircase on
the south wall of the central passage that leads to a 1loft. The roof
structure is identical to that of the main house and the kitchen. The
roof has spaced sheathing and is clad in sheet-metal that replaced an
earlier covering. The attic has two four-pane fixed-sash windows
flanking the chimneys on both gable ends. This building is also in good
condition.

Immediately north of the kitchen is a mid- to late-nineteenth-century
saddle-notched 1log crib measuring eighteen feet by fourteen feet, with a
projecting gable roof. The logs are round, and are set on an eight inch
square wooden sill which is set on a new brick piers. There is one
unbeaded board-and-batten door in the center of the east facade, and two
small wooden doors in the east and west gables. One unique feature of
this crib is that the flooring extends eighteen inches beyond the walls
on the east and west ends. There is a ladder stair to the loft in the
northeast corner of the crib. The roof structure is identical to that of
the main house. The roof has spaced sheathing and is covered with a
sheet-metal roof, which is a replacement of an earlier covering. This
building is in very poor condition; many of the logs are rotting and
falling out of place. -

Further north and east of the log crib is a frame, one-and-one-half-
story, gable-roofed barn with shed additions on all four sides. The main
sections of the barn measures thirty feet by twenty-four feet, with each
of the additions extending ten feet. The main central section is wood
frame construction set on brick piers laid in common-bond brickwork.
This part is circular-sawn, down-braced, and joined with corner posts and
studs mortised and tenoned inteo a large wooden sill and wall plate. It
is covered with unbeaded weatherboarding. There are no openings in the
east and west walls, only an unbeaded batten door on the south facade,
[
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and small wooden doors in both the north and south gables. A ladder
stair in the southwest corner leads to a loft. The rafters are set
directly on the wall plate, and are mortised, tenoned, and pegged, with
half~lapped collar beams, and Roman numerals carved into each of them.
The spaced sheathing on the reafters is covered with sheet-metal on the
east side and on the west side with round-butt wooded shingles, which are
in very bad condition. The main framing of this barn is in good
condition, but the stable extensions are deteriorating. There is a small
tackroom, framed and covered with unbeaded weatherboarding, located on
the southwest corner of the stable extensions.

The kitchen dependency, the slave or servants’ quarter, and the large
barn form a rectangle, with the log crib in the middle of this group.
These buildings are neatly grouped to form a cohesive, compact farmstead
within one hundred and fifty feet of the mainhouse. This area 1is a
generally flat, level site with open fields to the east, west, and north
of the farmstead. There is no surviving evidence of an outhouse or dairy
and there are many sections of the yard that may have been laid out as a
garden at one time.

Invento of resources, William Scott Farmstead:

1. Dwelling Building Contributing
2. Servant's Quarter Building Contributing
3. Smokehouse Building Contributing
4. Kitchen Building Contributing
5. Barn/Stable Building contributing

6. Corn crib Structure Contributing
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The next mention in surviving records of William Scott is in 1782, when
he iszidentified as the owner of a three-hundred-and-fifty-acre tract of
land. This substantial plantation, added to his other holdings, places
William Scott in the top eight percent of county landowners. ~In that
same year, William Scott paid taxes on fifteen black glaves, which placed

him in the upper nine percent of county slaveholders. In 1783, however,
William Scott owned no slaves at all; it appears that in a single abrupt
event, he either freed, sold or stopped leasing them. The reason why

Scott might have made such a drastic change in his economic life is
suggested in 1786, when the estate of_William Scott paid cash to "Josiah
Jowan for repairing meetinghocuse.” This passage helps to support the
local oral tradition that Scott was a member of a small congregation of
Quakers who gathered at a meetinghouse in the Windsor area of Isle of
Wight County; the Society of Friends discouraged its members from using
slave labor.

William Scott died intestate in 1785, and a court-ordered appraisement of
his estate made in April 1785 1lists him as the owner of extensive
household goods as well as livestock and farming implements. Between
1787 and 1832, the property remained identified.in the Isle of Wight
County Land Tax Records as the William Scott Estate. During this half-
century, very 1little appears to have been done to the house or to
the surrounding acreage.

In March 1832 ©Nathaniel P. Philips, of Nasemond County, purchased the
house and about three hundred and seventy-five acres from William Scott
and his wife Ann, of Dinwiddie County. . Since a full forty-seven years
had passed since the death of Wi;liam Scott the builder, this William
Scott is probably his grandson. A portion of the Scott-to-Philips deed
reads: "two certain tracts or parcels of land, situate lying and being in
the County of Isle of Wight and state aforesaig0 the first tract known by
the appelation of the Brick house plantation.”

Nathaniel P. Philips maintained ownership until late 1834, Wh?E he sold

the property to William W. Wright and his wife Mary Ann Wright. Their
possession continued until 1839, TE which time ownership passed to Dixon
W. Kitchen, of Southampton County. It is during the subsequent fifty-

year ownership of this property by D. W. Kitchen that the construction of
most of the present farmstead took place. It is probably Kitchen who
first raised the original brick house to two stories and then extended it
by means of the framed rear additions. The smokehouse and kitchen
dependency are most probably of antebellum construction, and construction
of the detached kitchen represents the end of use of the original cellar
kitchen in the main house. The slave or servants’ gquarter probably was
constructed just before the Civil War, as most of the structural members
are hewn or pit-sawn, although a few show circular saw marks. In 1850,
D. W, %%tchen was the owner of seven slaves; this may have been their
abode. Further evolution of the farmstead is represented in the
postbellum construction of the frame barn and the log crib. All of the
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framing members of the large barn and it shed additions show evidence of
circular saw marks. During the later years of D. W. Kitchen’s ownership,
the large frame addition was built onto the west elevation of the main
house. This addition extends the full length of the main house, is laid
out in the same central-passage plan of the main house, and represents
altered use and circulation patterns of the interior.

In December 1889, D. W, Kitchen sold his intggest in the property to John
R. Kitchen and other Kitchen family members. Then in January 1893 John
R. Kitchen sold Ege property to James A. Wilmore and his wife Mary, of
New York City. This transaction was for three hundred and forty-five
acres lying on both sides of the county road between Windsor and
Barbour‘’s Cross Road. Wilmore only held the property fgg two years, and
in September 1895 he sold the property to W. E. Kitchen.

Twe meonths later, W. E. Kitchen sold the propgrty to James Booker
Roberts, who died intestate and unmarried in 1896. The tract then
passed to his father, S. James Roberts. The elder Roberts owned it until
April 1915, when he died intestate, and the property devolved to his wife
and three surviving children. The Roberts children, in turn, sold their
interest in the property in September 1934 to John Goode Roberkg, Sr.,
who already owned a one-third interest in the property. This
instrument of 1934 also explains the transactions among the Roberts
children, their father S. James Roberts, and their mother, Lucy Roberts.

It is during this later era of Roberts ownership that the original three-
hundred-and-fifty-acre tract was partioned. The portion of the property
that passed to John Goode Roberts, Sr., consisted of approximately one
hundred acres. He held the property until he,died in 1952, at which time
ownership passed to his wife, Marnie Roberts. She owned it until she
died in 1983 at the age of ninety-four. At that time the property was
further subdigaded among the four children of Marnie and John Goode
Roberts, B8r. There were several transactions among the four children,
and in 1986 John Goode Roberts, Jr., and his wife Kathleen sold the house
and farmstead with approximatelglthree and one-quarter acres, to Thomas
J. Moore and Catherine C. Renney. Thomas Moore subsequently bought out
Cathering C. Renney’s share and then sold the land and house tszthe
present owners, Thomas J. Wright III, and his wife, Peggy P. Wright.
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%Isle of Wight County Deed Book 5, p. 565; Deed Book 9, p. 210.
3Isle of Wight County Land Tax Records, 1782.
4Isle of Wight County Personal Property Tax Records, 1782.
5151e of Wight County Personal Property Tax Records, 1783.
gIsle of Wight County Will Book 10, p. 338.
7Isle of Wight County Will Book 10, pp. 153-155.
8Isle of Wight County Land Tax Records, 1787 to 1832.
glsle of Wight County Deed Book 30, pp. 292-293. .
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have been excluded because they have been subdivided and sold to
various owners. These partitioned and sold tracts contaln no
contributing buildings or structures.
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